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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED

CHAIRMAN’S ADDRESS

Dear Shareholders,

It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all at the 9" Annual General Meeting of
Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited and present the Annual Report of your Company for
the Financial Year (FY) 2023-24. The Directors’ Report and Audited financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2024 have already been provided to all the shareholders. With
your permission, | take them as read.

I would like to place before you, few highlights of your company for the FY 2023-24.

Your Company has been incorporated as a public limited company, Special Purpose
Vehicle (SPV) and wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON) on May
12, 2015, and is a government company in terms of the provisions of section 2(45) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Your Company is executing the project of National Highways
Authority of India (NHAI) viz “Four-laning of Shivpuri-Guna Section of NH-3 from 236.00 km
to 332.100 km on Build Operate and Transfer (BOT) (Toll) basis on Design, Build, Finance,
Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) pattern under NHDP Phase IV” in the State of Madhya
Pradesh with total length of 97.70 km (“the Project”). The approval for commencement of
Business has been obtained on May 27, 2015. In terms of the concession agreement

dated June 15, 2015, NHAI has granted right to construct, operate and maintain the Project



(the “Concession”) for 20 years (including construction period) commencing from the
‘Appointed Date’ i.e. January 25, 2016. The Project is executed in two stages viz Stage-I
having length of 85.31 kms (i.e. stretch from Km 236.000 to Km 319.700) with execution
period of 910 days (30 months) and Stage-Il having length of 12.39 kms (i.e. stretch from
Km 319.700 to Km 332.100) with execution period of 12 months.

The total cost approved for the execution of the Project is ¥872.11 Cr. and was allocated in
the equity share capital of 150 Cr. (100% held by IRCON) and debt portion of ¥722.11 Cr.,
which was initially approved by IRCON as loan and partially availed by IrconSGTL. The
details of existing secured loan availed by your Company are detailed in para on ‘Secured
Loan and Rating’ in the report at para no.5 below.

Stage-l Project: The total cost allocated in the financial model for the Stage-l Project is
%759.98 Cr., for which IRCON was engaged as EPC Contractor at original EPC Cost of
%642 Cr. The Scheduled Commercial Operation Date (COD) was July 23, 2018 i.e., within
910 Days from the ‘Appointed Date’ of January 25, 2016. The COD for Stage-l of the
project was achieved one and a half month ahead of the schedule i.e., on June 6, 2018.
After completion of the construction of Stage-l Project and issue of provisional completion
certificate by Independent Engineer, the operation of toll plaza and collection of revenue
started w.e.f. June 07, 2018. The completion certificate for Stage-I Project was issued by
NHAI w.e.f. September 27, 2018. The project is presently in Operations & Maintenance
(O&M) phase with respect to Stage-I project.

Stage-ll Project: The total cost allocated in the financial model for the Stage-Il Project is
%112.12 Cr., for which IRCON has been engaged as EPC Contractor on cost plus 5%
basis, on January 01, 2021. The completion period for the construction of Stage-Il project
was initially 12 months from the letter of award to EPC Contractor or handover of site,
whichever is later. The Stage-Il execution has been completed for 12.39 Km Road length
and PCOD-1 of 10.39 Km was obtained on 17.12.2022. and PCOD-2 was issued by IE for
balance stretch of 2.0 Lm on 01.06.2023. Thus, revenue collection along with the O&M
phase for the entire project length of 97.70km is going on.

During the year under review, the revenue from toll operations has registered an increase
of 16.76% to %166.16 Cr. in FY 2023-24 against ¥142.31 Cr. in FY 2022-23, owing to
increase in tolling fees and traffic. The total revenue for the FY 2023-24 is ¥175.88 Cr. as
against %177.51 Cr. for the previous financial year registering decrease of 0.92%. The loss
before tax is 6.39 Cr. for the FY 2023-24 as against loss of 14.34 Cr. for the previous

financial year registering decrease in loss by 55.44%.



FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Your Company has achieved revenue from toll operations of ¥166.16 Crore as against
¥142.31 Crore for the previous financial year, thus registering an increase of 16.76%. The
loss before tax was %6.39 Crore for the FY 2023-24 as against the loss of ¥14.34 Crore for

the previous financial year implying a decrease in loss by 55.44%.

The authorized as well as paid-up equity share capital of the Company stood at Rs.150
Crore. As on March 28, 2022, your Company, had availed re-financing term loan facility /
secured loan of %501 Cr. from State Bank of India (SBI) supported by Corporate
Guarantee of IRCON. As on March 31, 2024 an amount of ¥483.57 Cr. was outstanding.

COMPLIANCES AND DISCLOSURES

Corporate Governance: Compliances and disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules thereunder are being fully adhered to by your Company. Your company is also
exempt from the compliance with the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) Guidelines
on Corporate Governance for CPSEs being a wholly-owned subsidiary of IRCON and a
CPSE constituted as SPV.

MoU: IRCON has granted exemption to the Company from signing of MoU with IRCON for
the financial year 2023-24 as well as for financial year 2024-25.

JOURNEY AHEAD

The revenue generated from the toll operations of the project are intended to cover the
operating cost, repayment of principal amount of debt and financing costs. The initiatives
taken by Government of India / NHAI for ensuring seamless travel, better infrastructure and
connectivity for the highway users like ‘Bharat Nirman’ programmes linking all unconnected
villages with fair weather roads, measures for improving electronic toll collection etc. will

further enhance the efficiency of toll operations and future growth of the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of Board of Directors, | express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance
and co-operation extended to the Company by the MoRTH and NHAI for their support and
guidance to the Company. Further, | record my sincere appreciation for the cooperation
extended by the holding Company, Ircon International Limited, the office of Comptroller &
Auditor General of India (C&AG), the Auditors, Bankers of the Company and other

professionals associated with the Company.



| would also like to thank my colleagues on the Board and the Company's employees for

their unstinting support. | look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead.

For and on behalf of
Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

Sd/-
(Yogesh Kumar Misra)
Chairman
[DIN: 07654014]
Date: 08.08.2024
Place: New Delhi
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,
The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 9" Annual Report and Audited Financial

Statements of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2024.

1.  FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
The key highlights on the financial performance of your company for the Financial Year

(FY) ended March 31, 2024 with comparative position of previous year’s performance are

as under:
(Amount in X Cr.)
Sl. No. Financial Parameters Year ended | Year ended
31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
1 Revenue from Toll Operations 166.16 142.31
Construction Contract Revenue 2.86 33.07
Revenue from Construction Services (Change of ) 1
Scope and other works)
4 Other Operating Revenue 0.41 0.38
5 Other Income 6.45 1.75
6 Total Income [(1) + (2)] 175.88 177.51
7 Project Expenses 93.82 106.78
e e e ™™ | x| 50
9 Other Expenses 0.12 0.07
10 | Total Expenses [(4) + (5) + (6)] 182.27 191.85
11 | Profit / (Loss) Before Tax [(3) — (7)] (6.39) (14.34)
12 | Profit / (Loss) After Tax (6.39) (14.34)

The financial statements for the FY 2023-24 have been prepared in pursuance of the
provisions of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in conformity with

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

2. OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:
Your Company has been incorporated as a public limited company, Special Purpose
Vehicle (SPV) and wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON) on
May 12, 2015, and is a government company in terms of the provisions of section 2(45) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Your Company is executing the project of National Highways
Authority of India (NHAI) viz “Four-laning of Shivpuri-Guna Section of NH-3 from 236.00
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km to 332.100 km on Build Operate and Transfer (BOT) (Toll) basis on Design, Build,
Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) pattern under NHDP Phase IV” in the State of
Madhya Pradesh with total length of 97.70 km (“the Project’). The approval for
commencement of Business has been obtained on May 27, 2015. In terms of the
concession agreement dated June 15, 2015, NHAI has granted right to construct, operate
and maintain the Project (the “Concession”) for 20 years (including construction period)
commencing from the ‘Appointed Date’ i.e. January 25, 2016. The Project is to be
executed in two stages viz Stage-l having length of 85.31 kms (i.e. stretch from Km
236.000 to Km 319.700) with execution period of 910 days (30 months) and Stage-ll
having length of 12.39 kms (i.e. stretch from Km 319.700 to Km 332.100) with execution

period of 12 months.

The total cost approved for the execution of the Project is ¥872.11 Cr. and was allocated
in the equity share capital of 150 Cr. (100% held by IRCON) and debt portion of
¥722.11 Cr., which was initially approved by IRCON as loan and partially availed by
IrconSGTL. The details of existing secured loan availed by your Company are detailed in

para on ‘Secured Loan and Rating’ in the report at para no.5 below.

Stage-l Project: The total cost allocated in the financial model for the Stage-I Project is
%759.98 Cr., for which IRCON was engaged as EPC Contractor at original EPC Cost of
%642 Cr. The Scheduled Commercial Operation Date (COD) was July 23, 2018 i.e.,
within 910 Days from the ‘Appointed Date’ of January 25, 2016. The COD for Stage-I of
the project was achieved one and a half month ahead of the schedule i.e., on June 6,
2018. After completion of the construction of Stage-l Project and issue of provisional
completion certificate by Independent Engineer, the operation of toll plaza and collection
of revenue started w.e.f. June 07, 2018. The completion certificate for Stage-l Project
was issued by NHAI w.e.f. September 27, 2018. The project is presently in Operations &

Maintenance (O&M) phase with respect to Stage-| project.

During the year under review, the revenue from toll operations has registered an
increase of 16.76% to ¥166.16 Cr. in FY 2023-24 against ¥142.31 Cr. in FY 2022-23,
owing to increase in tolling fees and traffic. The total revenue for the FY 2023-24 is
175.88 Cr. as against ¥177.51 Cr. for the previous financial year registering decrease of
0.92%. The loss before tax is 6.39 Cr. for the FY 2023-24 as against loss of 14.34 Cr. for

the previous financial year registering decrease in loss by 55.44%.
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Stage-ll Project: The total cost allocated in the financial model for the Stage-Il Project is
¥112.12 Cr., for which IRCON has been engaged as EPC Contractor on cost plus 5%
basis, on January 01, 2021. The completion period for the construction of Stage-Il project
was initially 12 months from the letter of award to EPC Contractor or handover of site,
whichever is later. The Stage-Il execution has been completed for 12.39 Km road length
and PCOD-1 of 10.39 Km was obtained on 17.12.2022. and PCOD-2 was issued by IE
for balance stretch of 2.0 Lm on 01.06.2023. Thus revenue collection along with the

O&M phase for the entire project length of 97.70km is going on.

3. SHARE CAPITAL:
The authorized, paid-up and subscribed equity share capital of the Company is 150 Cr.
comprising of 15,00,00,000 equity shares of ¥10/- each as on March 31, 2024.

During the year under review, there was no change in the share capital of your Company,
and Ircon International Limited continues to hold 100% paid-up share capital of
IrconSGTL.

4. DIVIDEND, RESERVES AND NET WORTH:
The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend on the equity shares of the
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024.

Your Company has a net worth of ¥40.97 Cr., after considering negative balance of
109.03 Cr. in the Reserves as on March 31, 2024.

5. SECURED LOANS AND RATING:
The financial closure of the project of your Company was achieved by tying up the entire
debt requirement of ¥722.11 Cr. from the holding company, Ircon International Limited in
the form of secured loan. As on March 28, 2022, your company, had availed re-financing
term loan facility / secured loan of ¥501 Cr. from State Bank of India (SBI) supported by
Corporate Guarantee of IRCON. As on March 31, 2024 an amount of ¥483.57 Cr. was

outstanding.

During the FY 2023-24, CARE Ratings Limited has reaffirmed ‘CARE AAA (CE)
rating for the long-term bank facilities of ¥491.98 Cr. to your Company.

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE
OF THE REPORT:
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No material changes and commitments have occurred which affect the financial position

of the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

7. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
The particulars as prescribed under the provisions of section 134(3)(m) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as follows:
A. Conservation of Energy:
(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy — NIL
(i) the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy — Solar
powered blinkers were installed at median openings in the project stretch
at a total cost of approx. ¥12 Lakh.
(i) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment — NIL

B. Technology Absorption: Not Applicable

(iy the efforts made towards technology absorption;

(i) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution;

(i) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned
from the beginning of the financial year)
(a) the details of technology imported;
(b) the year of import;
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed;
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the

reasons thereof; and

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo during the year: Not Applicable
(i) Foreign Exchange Earned
(i) Foreign Exchange Outgo

8. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D):

No R&D activities were carried out during the period under review.

9. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP):
DIRECTORS:

During the year under review, the holding Company [IRCON] had nominated Shri Kumar
Misra [having DIN:07654014], as the Chairman and Part-time Director of your Company,
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vice Shri Devendra Kumar Sharma w.e.f. February, 01, 2024. Shri Devendra Kumar
Sharma ceased to be the Chairman and Part-time Director of your Company consequent
to withdrawal of nomination by the holding Company [IRCON] w.e.f. January, 31, 2024.

Ms. Marzia Fatima, IRCON (DIN:10478302), was nominated as Part-time Director of your
Company w.e.f. January 23, 2024 vice Ms. Ritu Arora who ceased to be Part-time Director
of your Company w.e.f. November 16, 2023 and Shri Abheejit Kumar Sinha [having
DIN:09213782], was nominated as Director w.e.f. April 24, 2024 in place of Shri Rohit
Parmar, who ceased to be the Director of your Company w.e.f. April 24, 2024, in terms
of letters issued by IRCON, respectively.

Ms. Pooja Gurwala was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. July 28,
2023.

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2024, was as

follows:

Category, Name & Designation Appointment or Cessation

(during the year, if any)

Mr. Yogesh Kumar Misra, Chairman | 07654014 Appointed w.e.f. 01.02.2024
Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma, | 08556821 Cessation w.e.f. 31.01.2024
Chairman

Mr. Masood Ahmad, Director 09008553 -

Ms. Ritu Arora, Director 00002455 Cessation w.e.f. 16.11.2023
Ms. Marzia Fatima 10478302 Appointment w.e.f. 23.01.2024
Mr. Rohit Parmar, Director 08190141 Cessation w.e.f. 24.04.2024
Mr. Abheejit Kumar Sinha 09213782 Appointment w.e.f. 24.04.2024

None of the Directors are related to each other.

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Masood Ahmad, [having
DIN: 09008553], Director shall retire by rotation at this Annual General Meeting of your
Company and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors
recommends his re-appointment as Director and his brief resume is annexed to the Notice
of the ensuing 9" Annual General Meeting.
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After the closure of the year, the holding company has nominated Mr. Uttam Shamrao
Thorat, Deputy General Manager (Civil), IRCON as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of your
Company w.e.f. April 01, 2024 vice Shri Deepak Kumar Garg consequent to his relieving
from the post of CEO and KMP of your Company.

Shri Yogesh Kumar Misra, Ms. Marzia Fatima and Shri Abheejit Kumar Sinha, were
appointed as additional directors. Their appointment is proposed to be regularized at the

ensuing 9" AGM of the Company and has been included in the notice of ensuing AGM.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL.:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act 2013, the following were

the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company as on March 31, 2024:

S. No. Name Designation
1. Shri Deepak Kumar Garg Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)
2. Smt. Rachna Tomar Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
3. Smt. Pooja Gurwala Company Secretary

10. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AGM AND ATTENDANCE OF
DIRECTORS:
During the financial year 2023-24, Six (6) Board Meetings were held i.e. on 121" May,
2023; 6™ June, 2023; 15t August, 2023, 2" November, 2023, 6" December, 2023 and 31
January, 2024. The Meetings of the Board are held at regular intervals with a time gap of
not more than 120 days between two consecutive Meetings. All the Board meetings were
held through physical mode All the meetings of the Board of Directors and Annual
General Meeting were held at the registered office of the Company.

The attendance details of the Board Meetings is as follows:

S. No. | Date of the Meting Board Strength No. of Directors
Present
1. 12.05.2023 4 4
2. 06.06.2023 4 4
3. 01.08.2023 4 4
4. 02.11.2023 4 4
5. 06.12.2023 4 3
6. 31.01.2024 4 4
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The details of Director’s attendance at Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting held
during FY 2023-24 are tabled below:

16

Board Attendance of Directors
Meeting / | Shri Devendra Shri Shri Rohit Ms. Ritu Arora| Shri Yogesh Ms. Marzia
AGM Kumar Masood Parmar (upto Kumar Misra Fatima
Held on Sharma Ahmad 16.11.2023) | (w.e.f. (w.e.f.
01.02.2024) 23.01.2024)
12.05.2023 v v 4 v N.A. N.A.
06.06.2023 v v. v. v. N.A. N.A.
01.08.2023 v v 4 v N.A. N.A.
02.11.2023 v v v v N.A. N.A.
06.12.2023 v 4 v LA N.A. N.A.
31.01.2024 v v v N.A. N.A. v
AGM - v v v v N.A. N.A.
11.09.2023

N.A. - Not appointed as director on said date.
LA- Leave of Absence

11. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS, COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, AND
EXEMPTIONS THERETO:
In terms of provisions of section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 4 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, unlisted public
companies, which are wholly owned subsidiaries are exempted from the requirement of
appointing Independent Directors on their Board. Also, read with the provisions of section
177(1), 178(1) and rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014, the requirement of constitution of 'Audit Committee’ and 'Nomination and

Remuneration Committee', is not applicable on such companies.

Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) OM dated July 8-10, 2014
read with OM dated July 11, 2019, the CPSE’s constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle
(SPV) are exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance
for CPSEs.

Accordingly, IrconSGTL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary
company of IRCON, is not required to appoint Independent Directors on its Board, and

the declaration by the Independent Directors is also not applicable. Further, the
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constitution of Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board

is also not applicable.

12. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION:
In terms of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification no. GSR 463(E) dated June 05,
2015, the provisions of section 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with sub-rule 4
of rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule 2014 and section 178(2) of the Companies
Act, 2013, regarding annual evaluation of the Board, its Committees and of the individual
directors, is not applicable to the Government Companies, in case the Directors are
evaluated by the Ministry which is administrative in-charge of the Company as per its own

evaluation methodology.

IrconSGTL is a Government Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of IRCON. All the
Directors of your company are nominated by the holding company, who are subject to
evaluation by the holding company as per its pre-defined criteria in line with the guidelines

of the Government of India.

13. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:
The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, relating to Corporate Social

Responsibility (CSR) were not applicable to the Company during the period under review.

14. RISK MANAGEMENT:
In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat /

risk to the business of the Company.

15. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:
Adequate internal financial controls are exercised in the Company, keeping in view the
size of operations of the Company. The Company is following all the applicable
Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the books of account and reporting in the

financial statements.

The Company has appointed an independent firm of Chartered Accountants as Internal
Auditors to ensure that the Company’s systems and practices are designed with adequate
internal controls to match the size and nature of operations of the Company. The Internal
Auditors conduct a half yearly audit and review, covering all areas of operation. The
Reports of the Auditors along with the management’s responses are placed before the

Board of Directors for discussion and necessary action.
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16. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
As on March 31, 2024, the Company has 8 employees, which included 4 employees
deputed by the holding company which are on regular basis, and 4 employees appointed

by your Company on contract basis.

The provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to managerial
remuneration and requirements of disclosures in the Board’s Report as specified under
section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the related rules thereto are not
applicable on the Government companies in terms of notification no. GSR 463(E) dated
June 5, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Accordingly, such
particulars are not included as part of Directors’ Report.

No remuneration is being paid to the Directors of the Company.

17. VIGIL MECHANISM:
In compliance with the provisions of section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, with respect
to establishment of vigil mechanism, the Board of Directors have approved vigil
mechanism for employees and directors to report concerns about unethical behaviour,
actual or suspected frauds and to provide safeguard against victimization of employees

and Directors who avail the mechanism.

The requirement of appointment of Independent Directors and constitution of Audit
Committee is not applicable on the Company. Thus, the Board of Directors have
nominated a director for the purpose of vigil mechanism to whom other directors and

employees may report their concerns.

Under the vigil mechanism adopted by your Company, the complaints of

(a) nominated / deputed employees from the holding company shall be addressed as per
the ‘Whistle blower policy’ of IRCON (Holding Company), which is available at the
website of the IRCON at the link

https://www.ircon.org/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=212&ltemid=6

06&lang=en along with the names and other details of the officials to whom the

complaints are to be addressed.
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(b) for other persons in the employment of the Company, the Complaints shall be
addressed to:
Shri Masood Ahmad, Director,
Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (IrconSGTL)
Address: C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi — 110017
Phone No.: +91-011-26545410

Email id: masood.ahmad@ircon.org

No complaints were received during the FY 2023-24 and no person have been denied
access to the aforementioned designated officials / vigil mechanism adopted by the

Company.

18. PROTECTION OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE:
There were no complaints of sexual harassment pending at the beginning or received by

the Company during the year under review.

Your Company has adopted the ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of
Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ (POSH Policy) formulated by the holding company,
IRCON, which is available at the website of the holding company at link

https://www.ircon.org/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=212&Iltemid=606&I

ang=en. The Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) of IRCON formed at the Corporate
Office as well as its nearest project office shall be the ICC of IrconSGTL, for dealing with
matters under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013.

19. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING:
Your Company has requested IRCON to grant it exemption from compliance of Annual
MoU exercise for the financial year 2023-24, in line with the Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) Guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) dated
31st January, 2024 and IRCON vide its letter dated 21%tMarch, 2024 has granted
exemption to the Company from compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the financial
year 2024-25.

20. MSME COMPLIANCES:
In exercise of powers conferred by the provisions of section 9 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions

that all companies registered under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more
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than ¥500 Cr. and all CPSEs shall be required to get themselves on-boarded on the
Trade Receivables Discounting System (TReDS) platform, set up as per the notification of
the Reserve Bank of India. The Registrar of Companies (RoC) in each State shall be the
competent authority to monitor the compliance of such instructions and also the
Department of Public Enterprises, Government of India shall be the competent authority
to monitor the compliance of such instructions by the CPSEs. In compliance with the
above instruction, the Company has boarded on the TReDS platform w.e.f. December 16,
2019, to facilitate the financing of trade receivables of MSEs by discounting of their

receivables and realisation of their payment before the due date.
The Annual Procurement targets from MSEs have been complied during FY 2023-24.

21. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

(Pursuant to section 134(3)(c) of Companies Act, 2013)

In accordance with section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of

the Company hereby confirms: -

(a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the
financial year and loss of the company for that period;

(c) that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

(d) that the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) that the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

22. AUDITORS:
STATUTORY AUDITORS:
The Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) appointed M/s SR J N & CO LLP,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 0009063N/N500041) as the Statutory
Auditors of your Company for the FY 2023-24, in terms of the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.
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COST AUDITOR:

In accordance with the provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company has maintained cost
accounts and records. M/s Chandra Wadhwa & Co, Cost Accountants were appointed as
the Cost Auditors of the Company for FY 2023-24, in terms of the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

INTERNAL AUDITOR:

Your Company had appointed M/s Ravi Ranjan Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants as the
Internal Auditors of the Company for FY 2023-24, in terms of the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. During the year under review, M/s Ravi Ranjan Co. LLP had
conducted internal audit on half-yearly basis and submitted their report to the Board of
Directors.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:

Pursuant to provision of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, your Company
has appointed M/s Vasisht & Associates, Company Secretary in practice (CP No. 21476),
as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the FY 2023-24. The Secretarial Audit
Report for FY 2023-24 do not contain any adverse observations and forms part of this

Report.

23. STATUTORY AUDITROS’ REPORT AND C&G COMMENTS:
The reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements for FY 2023-24 with NIL
observation are attached separately as part of the Annual Report along with No Review
Certificate from Comptroller & Auditor General (C&AG) of India for the FY 2023-24.

24. ANNEXURES TO THE REPORT:
The following certificate / reports etc. are annexed and forms an integral part of this

report:

A. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES: During FY 2023-24 the related party transactions were with the holding
company, IRCON and were approved in terms of the Companies Act, 2013. These
transactions were at arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the
Company. The details of Related Party Transactions in form AOC-2 is enclosed to this

report as ‘Appendix-A’.
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B. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT: The Secretarial Audit Report by M/s Vasisht &

Associates is enclosed to this report as ‘Appendix-B’.

25. OTHER DISCLOSURES:

(i)  Your Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) relating to ‘Meetings of the
Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’ during the FY 2023-24.

(i)  Your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the financial
year.

(i)  Your Company does not have Subsidiary / Associate / Joint Venture Company.

(iv) There was no change in the nature of business of your company during the year
ended March 31, 2024.

(v) No application under Right to Information Act, 2005 has been received by your
company during the FY 2023-24, however, RTI applications transferred from DPE
were duly replied during the FY 2023-24.

(vi) There were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which
would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.
Further, there were no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors vide their Report
for the FY 2023-24.

(vii) There are no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the
Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the
Company.The Company has not given any loans or guarantees or made any
investment covered under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013.

(viii) All Directors had disclosed his nature of their interest / concern in the company or
companies or bodies corporate, firms, or other association of individuals as required

under the Companies Act, 2013 from time to time.
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Your Board of Directors place on record appreciation for the support extended by the
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agencies, Banks, Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG), Statutory Auditors,

Internal Auditor, Cost Auditors and Secretarial Auditor during the year.

Your Board of Directors take this opportunity to record their appreciation of the continuous

support and contribution from all the employees of the Company. Your Board of Directors
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also takes this opportunity to convey their gratitude and sincere thanks for the cooperation
and assistance received from the Shareholders during the period under report. The Board
of Directors acknowledges your confidence and continued support and looks forward for
the same in the future as well.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-
(Yogesh Kumar Misra)
Chairman
[DIN: 07654014]
Date: 08.08.2024
Place: New Delhi
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‘Appendix-A’
FORM NO. AOC-2

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS / ARRANGEMENTS ENTERED INTO
BY THE COMPANY WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF
SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 INCLUDING CERTAIN ARM’S LENGTH
TRANSACTIONS UNDER FOURTH PROVISO THERETO, FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
2023-24

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis: As

follows:

Name of the Nature of Duration of Salient terms | Date of | Amount
related party contracts / contracts / of contracts / |approval| received /
and nature arrangements / | arrangements | arrangements / | by the paid as

of transactions [ transactions | transactions, BoD, if | advances
relationship including the any by
value, if any IrconSGTL,
if any
(Xin Cr.)
Ircon 1. | EPC Date: EPC | Execution of 126.11.20
International Agreement Agreement complete scope 20
Limited executed on|of work  of 0.20Cr.
(IRCON), (For appointing | 20.01.2021. Stage-Il of the recovered
Holding IRCON as project ‘Four from Ra
Company EPC Duration: 12 | laning of bills
Contractor) months  from | Shivpuri to
letter of award | Guna from Km
dated 319.700 to Km

01.01.2021 or | 332.100 in the
handover  of | State of Madhya
site, whichever | Pradesh.

is later.
2. | Lease Date: Lease | Rent: @ |22.03.20 NIL
Agreement Agreement 323,359/~ p.m. 23

executed on | plus GST for an
(To take on | 05.04.2023 area of 65 sqm.
lease premises
of IRCON as | Duration:

the Registered | 01.07.2023 to

Office 31.03.2025
Premises of
IrconSGTL)
3. | Civil Date: Letter of | Civil 08.10.20 NIL
Construction | award dated | construction and 21
and Electrical | 26.07.2021 electrical works
works for for proposed
proposed Duration: 30 | two numbers of
Oxygen days from | oxygen plants in
Generation issue of LOA the State of
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Plants in the Madhya
State of Pradesh at two
Madhya locations i.e. (i)
Pradesh District Hospital,
Guna [1000
(For appointing LPM (DRDO)]
IRCON as and (i) Civil
agency for the Hospital, Aron
works) Distt., Guna
[500 LPM
(DRDOY)], on
reimbursement
basis.
4. | EPC Date: Appointment of |12.05.20| ¥19.84 Cr.
Agreement 22.06.2023 EPC Contractor 23 paid as
for execution of recoupable
(For appointing Major advance
IRCON as | Duration: 12 | Maintenance
EPC months  for | (Bituminous 32.14 Cr.
Contractor) major Overlay) and recovered
maintenance | three years from Ra
and 3 years | Routine bills
for Routine | Maintenance of
maintenance | Project Highway

Note:

1. Apart from the above transactions, the holding company has also deputed its employees to
IrconSGTL, which is on actual cost (CTC) basis. The salary benefits paid to such deputed
employees is as per IRCON'’s policy and are being reimbursed by IrconSGTL on actual
basis.

2. The details of “Related Party Disclosures” as per accounting standards are being disclosed
in Notes to the accounts in the Financial Statements.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-
(Yogesh Kumar Misra)
Chairman
[DIN: 07654014]
Date:08.08.2024
Place: New Delhi
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| IVasisht & Associates
Company Secretaries

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24
[Pursuant to section 204(7) of the Companies Act. 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the C ompanies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 20 74/

To,

The Members,

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2015G0I1280017

C-4, District Centre, Saket, South Delhi, Delhi-110017, India

I, Shobhit Vasisht, Proprietor of Vasisht & Associates, have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by
IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on the verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on March 31, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board- processes and compliance-mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the
provisions of:

() The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;(Not
Applicable to the Company)

Regd Office: 441, Sector-2, Faridabad-121004
Branch Office: A-35, LGF, Defence Colony, New Delhi-110024
Email: cs@vasishtassociates.com, Web: www.vasishtassociates.com
Contact No : +91-9953259389, +91-7838940145

L/

L~

%

1r C.PNo: 21476 *&
&

&

FCS: 11517
 §-

7}
%, >
Pany gect®


cspoo
Text Box
Appendix B


(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder ;(Not
Applicable to the Company)

The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules made thereunder to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings ;(Not Applicable to the Company)

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; (Not Applicable to the Company)

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015; (Not Applicable to the Company)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable to the Company)

(e) The Securities and Exchange board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company)

()  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt securities)
Regulations, 2008; (Not Applicable to the Company)

(9) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 and amendments thereof regarding the Companies Act
and dealing with client; (Not Applicable to the Company)

(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity shares) Regulations,
2009; (Not Applicable to the Company)

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of securities) Regulations, 2018;
(Not Applicable to the Company)

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible

Securities) Regulations 2021;(Not Applicable to the Company)

(vi) I further report that the system and processes of the Company are in place to ensure the

compliance with general laws like Labour Laws, The Indian Contract Act, The Sexual
Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 etc.
For the purpose of examining adequacy of compliance with other applicable laws including
industry / sector specific laws, under both Central and State legislation, reliance has been
placed on the representation made by the Company and its officers for systems and
mechanism formed by the Company for the compliance under these laws.
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The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, has
not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to review by the statutory
auditor(s) and other designated professionals.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable provisions of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect
to Board and General Meeting;
(i) Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs) issued
by the Department of Public Enterprises vide their OM No. 18(8)/2005-GM dated 14th
May, 2010.
(However, it is understood that as the Company is constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV),
and such companies have got an exemption for appointment of independent directors, submitting
Quarterly report and other Compliances of Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by
Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), vide its O.M. dated July 11, 2019 and July 8, 2014.)

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Standards and Guidelines etc. mentioned above.

I further report that:

®  The Board of Directors of the Company has been duly constituted with Non-Executive Directors
(including Women Director) as nominated by its Holding Company (“Ircon International
Limited”), as per the Articles of Association of the Company. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

® Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, except for meetings of the Board of
Directors, where consent for shorter notice was obtained. System exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and
for meaningful participation at the meeting.

® All decisions at the Board Meetings, as represented by the management, were taken
unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors.
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As per the explanations given to me and the representations made by the Management and
relied upon by me, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

During the period under review, as explained and represented by the management, there were
no specific events/actions in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards etc, having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs.

For VASISHT & ASSOCIATES;
(Company Secretaries)

L]
— \/\Wb M
—
CS SHOBHIT VASISHT
UDIN: FO11517F000311663
C.P No: 21476 PR No: 2355/2022

FCSs: 11517 . FCS No: 11517
CP No: 21476

Date: May 06, 2024
Place: Faridabad

Note: This report is to be read with the letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure-A

To,

The Members,

IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2015G0OI280017

C-4, District Centre, Saket, South Delhi, Delhi-110017, India

This report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on the audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that
the processes and practices, i followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. 1 have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of

the Company.

FOR VASISHT & ASSOCIATES;

Com Secretari
o & ASSOC. (Company Secretaries)
&> U (I,,)
&Y 4 % \j“W
4 CPNo:21476 | S SHOBHlT VASISHT

FCS: 11517

G &5
. A%

Pany gec®

IN: FO11517F000311663
PR No: 2355/2022

FCS No: 11517

CP No: 21476

Date: May 06,2024
Place: Faridabad
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% SRJN &CO LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

C-689A, 1st Floor, Near Siksha Bharti School, Palam Extn, Sector-7, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075
» Tel. : 011-43067140 + Mob : 9810694601, - e-mail : srjnllp@gmail.com
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To THE MEMBERS OF
IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of M/s IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA
TOLLWAY LIMITED (a wholly owned subsidiary of M/s IRCON International Limited
("the parent Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the statement of Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”} in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“"Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its losses including
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing ("SA"s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises Directors Report along with its annexures including Secretarial
Audit Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Such other information is expected to be made available to us after the date
of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

;J , ‘. Contd...2
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-2-

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and in doing so
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the report mentioned above, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance. As the other information is not made available to us as at the date of
this auditor’s report, we have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134
(5) of the Company’s Act (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including Other Comprehensive Income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controis, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease pperations, or has no
realistic altermative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a rnaterial misstatement when it exists.
Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

¢ Baf| Contd...3
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concemn.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Contd...4
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1,

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure-I a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable,

We are enclosing our report in terms of Section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis
of such checks of the books and records of the company as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, in
the Annexure-II on the directions and sub-directions issued by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

(A)

d.

(B)

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations,
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit,

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books,

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreerment with the books of account,

the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

Being a Government Company, pursuant to the Notification No. GSR
463(E) dated 5™ June 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India, provisions of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the
Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to Annexure III;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in the financial statements. Refer Note No. 32 to the
financial statements.

The company did not have long term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

. f : Contd...5
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c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d. (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in Note No. 37 (v)
to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf
of the Company or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(ii) The Management has represented that, to the best of its
knowiedge and belief, as disclosed in Note No 37(vi) to the
financial statement , no funds have been received by the
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(*Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of
the Funding Parties or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iif) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been
considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e}
contain any material mis-statement.

e, The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which
has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in
the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

(C) Being a Government Company, pursuant to the Notification No. GSR
463(E) dated 5% June 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India, provisions of sub-section (16) of Section 197 of
the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to tha Company;

FORSRING&COLLP
{Chartered Accountants)
Reg No. :0009063N/N500041

Date: 10 May 2024 . e ij

Place: New Delhi

CA Jai Prakash Rarh

Partner

M.No.: 501283

UDIN: 24501283BKGRZH1627
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Annexure-I

ANNEXURE OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to paragraph (1) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and

Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date)

)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v}

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and
equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
of intangible assets.

(b)  The Company has conducted physical verification of the property, plant
and equipment during the financial year under audit, and no
discrepancies observed related to fixed assets appearing under Fixed
Assets Register,

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements
are duly executed in favor of the lessee), consequently clause 3(i}(c} of
the Order is not applicable.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company
has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of
use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

{e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no
proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions
Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a) The company does not have any inventory and consequently, clause
3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company
has not been sanctioned working capital [imits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
the security of current assets at any point of time during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(ii}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has
not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans , secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties,
consequently, clause 3(iii}{(a)(b)(c)(d)(e)(f} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not given any loan, guarantee, security or made investment
as stipulated under Sections 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, consequently,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to
be deposits from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable. / \

]
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The Company has maintained cost records as required under section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013. However, we are neither required to carry out, nor
have carried out any detailed examination of such accounts and records.

(a)

(b}

The company has been regular in depositing with appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
material statutory dues as applicable to it. Being a wholly owned
subsidiary of M/s IRCON International Limited (the parent company),
majority of the employees are on standby deputation basis, therefore,
statutory dues related to such employees, such as Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance Company, Professional Tax, as applicable,
are being deducted and deposited by the parent company. However,
Employees who are on the payroll of the company, all the employees
related statutory dues, such as Provident Fund, Professional Tax as
applicable, are being deducted and deposited by company on regular
basis.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund,
employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six
maonths from the date they became payable

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of records of the Company, there are no
statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax, provident fund,
employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not
surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
as income during the year.

(a)

(b)

(c)

{(d)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
hasis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company
has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us by the management, term loans were applied for the purpose for
which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an
overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that
no funds raised on shert-term basis have been used for long-term
purposes by the Company.

// j-' Contd...3
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According to the information and explanations given to us and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we
report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, as
defined in the Act. The Company does not hold any investment in any
associate or joint venture (as defined in the Act) during the year ended
31 March 2024.

According to the information and explanations given to us and
procedures performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries
(as defined under the Act).

According to the information and explanations given te us, the company
has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer (including debt
instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and
according to the information and explanations given to us, considering
the principles of materiality outlined in the Standard of Auditing, we
report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report
under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year while determining the nature, timing
and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the transactions with related party is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of
the Act, where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(a)

(b}

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit
procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an intemal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till
date for the period under audit.

In our opinion and according to information and-explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into any nen-cash’transactiens with its directors or
persons connected to its directors and hence prowslaﬂs \of Section 192 of the
Act are not applicable to the Company. |, P T |
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(xvi} (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45- IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, the requirement
to report, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Qrder is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration {CoR) from
the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(<) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause
3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to information and explanations provided to us during the
course of audit, the Group does not have any CICs.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order not applicable.

{xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act
pursuant to any project. Accordingly, causes 3(xx){(a) and 3{xx){b) of the
Order are not applicable.

(xxi} The company has not prepared consolidated financial statement. Therefore,
reporting under clause xxi of the order is not applicable.

Date: 10* May 2024 FORSRJN&COLLP
Place: New Delhi (Chartered Accountants)
Reg No. :0009063N/N500041

J &/ CA Jai Prakash Rarh
Loree S Partner
— M.No.: 501283

UDIN: 24501283BKGRZH 1627
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Annexure=-JI

ANNEXURE OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to paragraph (2) under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date}

ﬁt. Query Response

1. Whether the Company has system in | The company has separate software
place to process all the accounting | for managing the Operations at Toll
transactions through IT System? If yes, | Plaza, named as “Comvision Toll
the implications of processing of | Management Systemn” and
accounting  transactions outside IT | Accounting Records are being
System on the integrity of the accounts | maintained under “SAP S/4 Hana
along with the financial implications, if | System” and both the software’s are
any, may be stated. not integrated,

However, there are no financial
implications of the same,

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an | There were no any restructuring of
existing loan or cases of waiver / write off | an existing loan or cases of waiver /
of debts / loans / interest etc. made by a | write-off of  debts/loans/interest
lender to the company due to the | made by a lender to the company
company’s inability to repay the loan? If | due to the company’s inability to
yes, the financial impact may be stated. | repay the loan.

Whether such cases are properly
accounted for? (In case, lender is a
Government company, then this direction
is also applicable for statutery auditor of
lender company).
3. Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) | There were no funds which have

received / receivable for specific schemes
from Central / State Government or its
agencies were properly accounted for /
utilized as per its term and conditions?
List the cases of deviation.

heen received / receivable for specific
schemes from Central / State
agencies.
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Annexure - I1I

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED

(Referred to paragraph {3(f)} under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date)

[Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"}]

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s IRCON
SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“"Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal finandial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting. ;
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2024, “based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India,

Date: 10" May 2024 FORSRJN&CQLLP
Place: New Delhi (Chartered Accountants)
Reg No. :0009063N/N500041

P A & L

&/ CA Jai Prakash Rarh
- Partner
M.No.: 501283

UDIN: 24501283BKGRZH1627
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Compliance Certificate

We have conducted the audit of annual accounts of IRCON Shivpuri Guna Tollway
Limited for the year ended 31%* March, 2024 in accordance with the directions/sub-
directions issued by the C & AG of India under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 and certify that we have complied with all the Directions/Sub-directions issued to

us.
Date: 10" May 2024 FORSRJN&COLLP
Pilace: New Delhi {Chartered Accountants)

Reg No. :0009063N/N500041

CA Jai Prakash Rarh
Partner
M.No.: 501283
UDIN: 24501283BKGRZH1627
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TRCON SHIVRUR] GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
(CIN- U45400012015GO1280017)
BALANCE SHEET as at 31st March 2024

(ansp

(in Rs. ¢rore)

Particulars Noste No. As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
I |ASSETS
1 |Non-CUrtent assets
() Property, Plant and equipment 3 .81 0.37
{b) Intangble Assets 4 535,70 570.70
(<) Intangible assces under development + - 7.81
{d) Financial Assers
(i) Other Financial Assets 5 016 013
{©) Deferred tax assets (Net) I . -
{f) Other non-current assets 7 3.00 3.20
Total Non-current assets 539.67 SH2.21
2 |Current assets
()  Fimncal Assers 8
(1) Trade Receivables #1 0.71 0.55
(11} Cash and cash cquivalents #2 11572 6073
{1it} Other Bank Balances a3 1.06 -
(iv) Other Financial Asscts 84 3.81 1.42
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) b .68 130
{c) Orther current assets in 17.83 0.24
Total Current assets 139.81 63.24
Total Assets 679.48 645.45
1. |[EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
{a) Equity Share Capital n 150.00 150.00
(b) Other Equity 12 {109.03) (102.64)
Total Equity 40.97 47.36
2 |Liabilities
(i) |Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities 13
(i) Borrowings 131 467.17 488.78
(1) Lease habilities - -
(ni} Trade Payables -
- Dues of Miceo Enterprises and Small Entecprises
- Total outstanding dues other than of Micco Eaterprises and Small Enterpeises
{) Other financial Labilities 132 0.03 (.03
(b} Provisions 14 =
Total Non-current liabilities 467,20 488.81
(i) [Current liabilities
{a} Financial Liabilities 15
1) Borrowings 131 16,40 428
{i1) Lease liabilities = -
{11} Trade payables 152
- Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterpriscs
- Towl outsmnding dues Other than of Miceo Entecprises and Small Enterprises 68,21 el
{iv) Other fnancial Labalities 15.3 14.13 7.0t
(b) Other current liabilities 16 1.24 0.38
(<} Provisions 14 71.33 65.50
(d) Current Tax Lability (Net) - -
Total Current liabilities 171,31 109.28
Total Equity and Liabilities 679.48 645.45
1L | Summary of Material Accounting policies 1-2
IV. |Notes forming part of financial staternents 3.39

Asg per our Report of even date attached

ForSR) N & Co LLP
Chactered Accountants
Firm Reg. Na, : 009063N

{CA Jai Prakash Rach )

Designated Partner { Untam Shameao Thozat )
b Mo, 3012483 Chief Executive Qfficer
Phee : tNew Delhi

Date :- 1{th May 2024

{Rachoa Tomar)

Chief Financial Officer

/ { Abhuejit Kumar Sinha)
Direetor
DM - 092135782

p L]
{ Poop Gurwal)
Company Secrerary
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
(CIN- U45400DL2015GOI280017)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024

ieomspe

(in Rs. crore)

3 For the year ended| For the year ended
Parueaties Note No-| ). March 2024 | 3isc Macch 2023
I |Revenue:
Revenue from operations 17 169.43 17576
II. [Otherincome 18 6.45 1.75
IIL Total Income (I + II) 175.88 177.51
IV, |Expenses:
Project Expenses 19 93.82 106.78
Employee benefits expenses 20 1.36 1.57
Finance costs 21 41.14 40.87
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairmeat 22 45.83 42.56
Other Expenses 19 012 0.07
Total Expenses (IV). 18227 191.85
V. |Profit/ (Loss) Before exceptional items and Tax (III - IV) {6.39) {14.34)
V1. |Exceptional items - -
VIL [Profit/ Loss before tax (V + V) (6.39) (14.34)
VIIL |Tax expenses:
{1) Curtent tax
- For the Period
- For earlier years (net) -
{2) Deferred tax (nef) 6
Tatal Tax Expense - -
IX |Profit/ (Loss) for the period from continuving operation (VII - VIII) (6.39) (14.34)
X |Other Comprehensive Income - -
X1 Tatal Comprehbensive Income for the period (IX +X) (Comprising (6.39) 14.34)
profit/(Loss) and other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax)
XIl |Earnings Per Equity Share:
(For Continuing Operation)
(1) Basic { Absolute Value in INR) 30 {0.43) (0.96)
2) Diluted { Absolute Valie in TN 30 {0.43) {0.96)
Face Value Per Equity Share 10.00 10.00
XIIT |Sumrmary of Material Accounting policies 1-2
XIV [Notes forming part of financial statements 3-39

As per our Report of even date actached

ForSR)N & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

irector

II'IllI Ir;_) T e

Firm Reg. No.: 009063N DINY 09008553 W7
/- ?

(CA Jai Prakash Rach ) ( ( FR / __._-—-Wi

Designated Partner \Q { Uttam Shamrac Thorat ) {(Rachna Tomar)

M. Ne. 501283 N N é Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Place : New Delhi
Date :- 10th May 2024
UDIN : 24501283BKGRZH1627

For and on behalf of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

A

| Abheejit Kumar Sinha)

Director
DIN - (9213782

[

{ Pooja Gurwala)
Company Secretary
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TRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED /Wﬂ.ffﬂ

(CIN- U45400DL2015GO1280017)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

(in Rs. crore)

Particulars As ar 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before taxation 639 (14.34}
Adjustment for :
Unwinding of discount on provisions - 341
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 45.83 42.56
Finance Cost 41.12 37.46
Profit on sale of assets (neg) 0.001 -
Tareeest Income (6.40) {1.58)
Opcrating Profit before Current /Non-Current Assets and Liabilities (1) 74.18 67.51
Adjustment for :
Decrease / {Increase) in Trade Receivables/ Financial Asscts - Loans {0.1G) 0.02)
Decrease / {Increase) in Other Assers & Financial Asscts (17.61) 0.10
{Decrease) / Increase in Trade Pavables 13.35 019
{(Decrease) / Increase in Other Liabilities, Financial Liabilities & Provisions 14.11 33.04

(2) 29.69 33.31
Cash generated from operations (1+2) 103.87 100.82
Income Tax Paid (net) (0.68) {0.20)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (&) 103.19 100.62
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equiprent (0.603 -
Purchase of lotangible Asscts/ Intangible assets under development .10 260
Interest Received 399 018
Bank Balance other thaa Cash and Cash Equivalents {1.06) =
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES {B) 2.43 2.78
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Loan to State Bank of India (949 (6.803
Borrowing Cost (41.14) (37.46)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (©) (50.63) (#4.26)
Effect of Exchange differences on transhitioo of Foreign Currency Cash & Cash (D) ) R
Equivalents
NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH 8 CASH EQUIVALENTS {A+B+C+D) 54.99 59.14
OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {E) 60,73 1.59
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (F) 115.72 60.73
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH 8 CASH EQUIVALENT (F-E) 54.99 59.14

Note : 1. The above Cash flow Statement has been prepased undec the “Indirect Method”as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 7 on
Statement of Cash Flows.

_.r'-_-_""\-\.\_\“
LGUNA A
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IRCON SHIVFURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
{CIN- U45400DL2015GO1280017)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Heansg

2. Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents and Componeats of Cash and Cash Equivalents included in the above Standalone Statemeat of Cash Flows :

In Rs Crores

Particulars As at Jlst March 2024 |  As at 31st March 2023

Cash in hand
Cheques/drafts in hand
Remittance in Transit
Balances with banks:

— On current accounts 005 1.00
— Flexi Accounts 11567 59.73
— Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 menths = -
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet and $Standalone Stat t of Cash Flows 115.72 60.73

* The abare bulancer , pertain to ESCROW 1/ C whick are earmarked fiand as per concecsion agrrement entered with NFLAL Ons of this , Re 46.67 crores ( Re 10 crores) bas bee

earmarked for Major Maintenance Reserve Acconnt (arailable for use for major murienance work),

3. Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for Jiabilities arising from financing activities:

Rs in Crores

Particulars Borrowings
As at Ist April 2022 499.86]
{a) Cashflows during the year {6.80)
(b) Mon cash changes during the year due ta ;

Transition impact of Ind AS 116

Interest Aceryed
As at 31st March 2023 493.06
(a} Cashflows during the year (9.49)
(b) Non cash changes during the year due to

Interest Accrued ( Met of interest paid)

As at 31st March 2024 483.57

4. Figures in brackets represent outflow of cash.
5. Figures of the previous year have been reprouped / recasted wherever necessary.
As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

ForSRJN & CoLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firen Reg. No.: 009063N

CIJ

*

9}

(CA Jai Prakash Rarh ) \,
&

i

Abheejit Kurmar Sinha}
Direcror
DIN - 09213782

Designared Partner g ( Uttam Shamrao Thorat } (Rachna Tomar) ( Pooja Gurwala)
M. No. 501283 Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Cormpany Secretary
Place : New Delhi

Date - 10th May 2024
UDIN : 24501283BKGRZH1627
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2024

A. Equity Share Capital
For the ¥carended 31st March 2024

WEasg

(in Rs. crorc)

Particufars

Balance as at dhe
beginning of 1st,
April 2023

Change in Equity
Share Capital due
to prior period
crrors

Restared balance
at the beginning
of the current
reporting period

Changes in cquity
during the year

Balance as ar 3lse
March, 2024

Equity Shares (in Numbers)

15,060,000

15, [HLIMLINN)

15,00 10,0000

Amount

1504000

15000

150,00)

For the year ended 315t March 2023

(in Rs. crore)

Balance as at the

Change in Equity

Restared balance

Paniicitlarg beginning of st Share Capital due | at die beginning | Changes in equity | Balance as at 35t
“April 2022 i o prior period of the current during the year March, 2023
P CErors reporting period
Equity Shares (in Numbers) 15,008,000, H0) - 15,0000, (HK) - 15, K000
Arnount 150.00 15(0L14) - 150,00
B. Other Equity
For the year ended 31st March 2023 (in Rs. crore)
Rescrves & Surplus Other Comprehensive
Income
Particulars Capital Exchange Idi!'fcrc:ccs Total
General Reserves| Reuined Eamings | Redemption O {TASS PUNE the
Reserve financial statement of
Lot a forcign operation
Balance as at 1 April, 2022 - (88.30) - - (88.30)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - -
Balance as at | April, 2022 (Restated) - (88.30) - - {88.30)
Profic/(Loss) for the year {14.34) - - (1434
Other Comprehensive Income i
Total Comprehensive Income for the period - (14.34) s - (14.34)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - (102.64) - - (102.64)
For the vear ended 31st Mar 2024 (in Rs. crore)
Reserves & Surplus Other Comprehensive
Income
Particulars Capital Exchangcldi!‘fcrc:cgs ‘Total
General Reserves| Retained Eamings | Redemption SO AR aime the
R financial statement of
ESEVC a foreign aperation
Balance as at 1 April, 2023 - (102.64) - - (102.64)
Changes in accountng policy or prior period errors . fr -
Balance as at 1 April, 2023 (Restated) - (102.64) - - (102.64)
Profit/(Loss) for the vear = (6.39} B - {639}
Other Comprehensive Income =
Total Comprehensive Income for the period - (6.39} - - (6.39)
Balance as at March 31st, 2024 - (109.03} - - {109.03)

As per our Repont of even date attached

ForSRJN & CaLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. @ 008063M

(CA Jai Prakash
Designated Partner

M. No. 501283

Place : New Delhi
Date = 10th May 2024
UDIN : 24501 343BRGRZH 1627

aeh)

For and on behalf of Ircon Shivpuri Guoa Tollway Limited

{ Uttam Shamrao Thorat}

Chief Exceutive Officer

{Rachna Tomar)
Chief Financial Officer

Director

DIN - 09213782

Poc

{ Pooja Gurwala)

Company Sceeetary
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2.2.

Corporate Information

Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited
domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of companies Act 2013 applicable in India.
The company came into existence when, Ircon International Limited has been awarded the work of
‘Four Laning of Shivpuri — Guna Section of NH-3 from km 236.000 to km 332.100 (Stage ~ 1) in the
state of Madhya Pradesh on DBFOT basis in accordance with the terms and conditions in the
concession agreement by National Highway Authority of India (NHAI). In pursuance the provisions
of Request for Proposal’, the selected bidder ‘Ircon International Limited’ has formed a Special
Purpose Vehicle (SPV) named Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (IrconSGTL) as wholly owned
subsidiary and incorporated under Companies Act, 2013 on 12th May 2015. Accordingly, SPV has
signed the Concession Agreement with NHAI on 15th June 2015. The concession period of 20 years
commenced on 25th Jan 2016 i.e. Appointed Date notified by the National Highway Authority of India.
The registered office of the company located at C-4, District Centre, Saket, and New Delhi - 110017.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors in their meeting
held on 10.05.2024

Material Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements
i) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on going concern basis following accrual
system of accounting and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended from
time to time) and presentation requirements of Division I of Schedule IIT to the Companies Act, 2013,
(Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the financial statements.

ii) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

» Provisions, where the effect of time value of money is material are measured at present value
o Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

iii) Functional and Presentation Currency

These Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest crores upto two decimals except for per share
data, unless otherwise stated.

Summary of material accounting policies

A summary of the material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are
as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the
financial statements.
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2.2.1.

2.2,2,

2.2.3.

Current and non-current classification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
and cash equivalents, the Company has determined twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose
of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current in the balance sheet.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at cost.
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes:

(a)its purchase price, net of any trade discount and rebates including non-refundable purchase taxes,

after deducting trade discounts and rebates;
(b)any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be

capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as specified under part C of schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013 and disclosed
in the notes to accounts. The residual values is not more than 5% of the original cost of assets.

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the cost of part is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of that part is different from the useful

life of remaining asset.

Property, plant and equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to Rs. 5000/ - are fully
depreciated, by keeping Re. 1 as token value for identification. However, Mobile phones provided to
employees are charged to statement of profit and loss irrespective of its value.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in statement of profit or loss within other gains/(losses).

Intangible assets

Toll Collection Right (Toll Road Service Concession Arrangement)

"Toll collection rights obtained in consideration for rendering construction or upgradation services in
a service concession arrangement (SCA), represent the right to collect toll revenue during the

concession period in respect of Build-Operate-Transfer ("BOT") project undertaken by the Company.

Toll collection rights on initial recognition are measured at cost (which is the fair value of the
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2.2.4

»

consideration received for the construction services delivered).

Toll collection rights are capitalized as intangible assets upon completion of the project in all respects
and when the company receives the completion certificate (Provisional or Final) from the authority as
specified in the Concession Agreement at the cumulative construction costs. Till the completion of the
project, the same is recognised under intangible assets under development.

Subsequently, the toll collection rights are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a service concession arrangement is the period from
where the company is able to charge the public for use of infrastructure to the end of the concession

period.

Toll collection rights are amortized using straight line method on pro-rata basis from the date of
addition or from the date when the right brought in to service to the expiry of concession period.

Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end.

The carrying value of intangible asset is reviewed for impairment annually or more often by external
valuers if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in statement of profit or loss within other gains/(losses).

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from the Service Concession Arrangement comprising the
construction, operation & maintenance services pertaining to a infrastructure (Road) under a Built
Operate and Transfer (BOT) model.

i) Revenue from Service Concession Arrangement (Toll Collection)

As the Company involved in construction and maintenance of Roads, revenue are recognized in line
with the Appendix C to Ind AS 115 — Service Concession Arrangements. Toll collection is recognized in
the period of collection of toll / user fee which coincides with the usage of the infrastructure (Road)
i.e. at point of time.
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2.2.6.

202.70

Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract
work to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and can be measured reliably. The
Company recognizes toll revenue as and when it collects at Transaction Price i.e usage fee.

Contract balances

Contract assets: If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. The portion of the payments retained by the customer untl final
contract settlement is not considered a significant financing component since it is usually intended to
provide customer with a form of security for Company’s remaining performance as specified under the
contract, which is consistent with the industry practice.

Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that
is unconditional {i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).
Trade receivable are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant
financing components. The Company hold the trade receivable with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measure them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less loss allowance.

ii) Other income
¢ Interest income is recognised using Effective Interest rate method.
s All other income is accounted on accrual basis when no significant uncertainty exists regarding
the amount that will be received.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in eonnection with the
borrowing of funds and are charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are
incurred except when it meets the criteria for capitalization as part of qualifying assets as per Ind AS

23.
Employee Benefit

i) Short Term Employee Benefits

Employee benefits such as

salaries and wages, short term compensated absences, and Performance Related Pay (PRP) falling due
wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits
and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement of profit and loss in in the
period in which the employee renders the related services.

ii) Post-employment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits

The employees of the Company are on deputation from Ircon International Limited, Holding
Company. The post employee benefits & other long term employee benefits includes gratuity,
provident fund, post- retirement medical facility, pension, leave encashment and leave travel
concession. ==
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As per arrangement with the Ircon International Limited, Holding Company, the cost in relation to
post employee benefits & other long term Employee benefits will be reimbursed to the holding
Company on the basis of fixed contribution based on basic pay and dearness allowance for the period
of services rendered in the Company.

The company’s liability with respect to the long-term employee benefit is limited to the extent of fixed
contribution to be paid to the holding company. Actual settlement of the long-term employee liability
will be the responsibility of holding company.

The Contractual employees of the Company are not eligible for post employee benefits & other long
term employee benefits.

2.2,8. Taxes
Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred income tax.

i) Current income Tax

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period and is
computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations.

Current income tax is recognised in statement of profit and loss. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided for temporary taxable/deductible difference arising on the difference of tax
base and accounting base of assets/liabilities using the liability method and are measured at the
enacted tax rates or substantively enacted tax rates at reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

2.2.9. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
unrestricted cash and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months and less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change

in value,

&

T AT
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2.2.10. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions recognised by the Company include provisions for major maintenance and others.

Major Maintenance Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

This provision are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
ii) Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that may
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of
such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no
provision or disclosure is made. Contingent liabilities has been disclosed as a part of notes to account.

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
iii) Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognised though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

2.2.11. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for
consideration.

i) Company as a lessee
a) Short Term leases
The company has elected not to recognise ROU and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a

lease term of twelve months or less and leases of low value assets. The company recognise lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.2.12. Financial instruments

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the
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contractual provisions of the instrument.
i. Financial assets

a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets (excluding trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing
component, being measured at transaction price) are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in statement of profit and loss.

b) Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement of financial asset depends on the Company business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its financial asset as:

Financial assets at amortised cost

After initial measurement, the financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flow represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method,
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for recognising impairment loss on
financial assets measured at amortised cost, trade receivables, and other contractual rights to receive
cash or other financial asset.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company follows 'simplified approach' and measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition.
If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as expense/
income in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘Project expenses’
in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for financial assets measured at
amortised cost is described below:

ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria,
the company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

¢) Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset, and the transfer qualifies for derecognition
under Ind AS 109.

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of con51derat10n received / receivable is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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ii Financial liabilities

a) Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables and other financial
liabilities.

b) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

After initial recognition, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR (Effective Interest Rate) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss.

¢) Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

2.2.13. Fair value measurement
The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured, are disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the level 3 (Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is unobservable) of fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

2,2.14. Earnings Per Share

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during -the period.

In determining diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

2.2.15, Prior Period Adjustment

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial and
adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 0.50%
of total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company.

,f : OL P / %
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2.2,16. Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of Financial Statements requires the management to make judgements, accounting
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning
out to be different than those originally assessed.

Significant areas of estimation and judgements as stated in the respective accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the financial statements are as follows:

i. Allowances for uncollected trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivable’s balances and
historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems not be
collectible.

ii. Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims
against the company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based on all
available facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably and such
obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can be no
assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the company is involved. it is not expected
that such contingencies will have material effect on its financial position of probability.

iii. Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation., based on the company’s past history, credit risk, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

iv. Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws,
and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business differences arising
between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could
necessitate future adjustments that will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is made. The company establishes provisions,
based on reasonable estimates.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

v. Impairment of non-financial assets
The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
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Determining the recoverable amount of the assets is judgmental and involves the use of significant
estimates and assumptions. The estimates are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable, but
which are inherently uncertain and unpredictable and do not reflect unanticipated events and

circumstances that may occur.
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED I/”-””,flfl

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Intangible Assets (in Rs. Crote)
Intangible
Intangible Asset Other

Particulars assets under (Toll Road) Intangibles

development (Refer Note (Softwarte)

25)

Gtoss Block
Opening balance at 1 Aptil 2022 20.69 725.95 -
Addition during the year 33.08 45.96 -
Capitalisation during the year 45.96 - -
Disposals / adjustment during the year - - -
Closing balance at 31 Matrch 2023 7.81 771.91 -
Addition during the year 2.36 10.67 -
Capitalisation during the year 10.67 -
Closing balance at 31st Mar 2024 - 782.58 -

Amortisation and Impairment
Closing balance at 31 Match 2022 158.75 -

Amortisation during the year 4246 -
Sales / adjustment duting the year - -
Closing balance at 31 March 2023 - 201.21 -

Amortsation during the year 45.67 -

Sales / adjustment duting the yeat -
Closing balance at 31st Mar 2024 246.88 -

Net book value
At 31st Mar 2024 - 535.70 -

At 31 March 2023 7.81 570.70 -

Intangible assets under development (in Rs. Crore)

Particulars Less than 1 year  1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 Total
years

As at March 31, 2024
Projects in progress - s - - -
Projects temporarily suspended = - < .

As at March 31, 2023
Projects in progress 7.81 - - - 7.81
Projects temporarily suspended - . 5 - -

7.81 - - 7.81
Completion was not overdue for the above project. ===

A
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED

WEamsge

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Non-Cutrent Assets - Other Financial Assets

(in Rs. Crore)

Particulars

As at 31st  As at 3lst
March 2024 March 2023

a) Considered Good : Unsecured

Security Deposits

- Othets 0.16 0.13
Total - Other Financial Assets 0.16 0.13
b) Considered Doubtful
Total - Other Financial Assets - Doubtful - -
Grand Total - Other Financial Assets 0.16 0.13
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Other Non-Current Assets

HEmmsye

(in Rs. Crore)

As at 31st  As at 31st Mar,

Particulars March 2024 2023

a) Capital Advances

Capital Advance for Creation of Intangible Asset ( Stage II of Toll Road) 3.00 3.20
Total - Capital Advances 3.00 3.20
Considered Good : Unsecured 3.00 3.20
Total 3.00 3.20
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED //-W/Iﬁ_'lf[
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Match 2024
Current Financial Assets - Cash and Cash equivalents (in Rs. Crore)
Particul As at 3lst As at 31st
artslan March 2024  March 2023
Cash on hand - -
Balances with banks:*
= On current accounts 0.05 1.00
— Flexi Accounts 115.67 59.73

— Deposits with original matutity of less than 3 months - -

115.72 60.73

* The above balances , periain to ESCROW A/ C which are earmarked fund as per concession agreement entered sith NFLAL Out of this ,
Rs46.87 ervres ( Rs 10 crores) bas been carmarieed for Major Maintenance Reserve Acconnt (available for use for major maintsnance work).

Current Financial Assets - Other Bank Balances
(in Rs. Crore)

As at 3lst As at 3lst

Particulars March 2024 March 2023

Other Bank Balances
— Deposits with original matutity of motre than 3 months but less than 12
months :
Eatmarked Balances :
- Iiin;n account of penalty imposed by National Highway Authority of 1.06
Indi

106 -

¥+ _Above amount mentioned is also shwon under contingent Labilities in note no. 32 (i)
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Current Assets - Other Financial Assets

HEOomsg

(in Rs. Crote)

Particulats

As at 31st March  As at 31st

2024 March 2023
A. Unsecured, considered good
Interest Accrued on :

- Deposits with Banks/Flexi Deposit 3.80 1.41
Other Recoverable 0.01 0.01
Total - Other Financial Assets - Good 3.81 1.42
B) Considered Doubtful
Total - Other Financial Assets - Doubtful - -
Grand Total - Other Financial Others 3.81 1.42

Details of amount due from Directots:

(in Rs. Crore)

Particulars

2024

As at 31st March

As at 3lst
March 2023

Amount due from directors included in interest accrued on staff loans
and advances

Total
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED ”ﬂﬂ”ﬂﬂ

Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended 31st March 2024

Current Assets - Current Tax Assets (Net) (in Rs. Crore)

Pattical As at 31st March As at 31st March
articulars 2024 2023

Taxes Paid including TDS & Advance Tax (Net of Provision for Tax) 0.68 0.30

Current tax Assets (Net) 0.68 0.30
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TRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Weamsye

Other Current Assets (in Rs. Crore)
Particula As at 31st March As at 31st March
By 2024 2023
Considered Good : Unsecured
a) Advances Other than Capital Advances
Advances to Contractors- Related Party- Holding Company 17.70
- Goods & Services Tax 0.03 0.12
Prepaid Expenses 0.10 0.12
Total - Others 17.83 . 0.24
b) Considered Doubtful
Less: Impairment allowance for doubtful advances -
Total - Considered Doubtful - -
Gtand Total 17.83 0.24
4 3 -
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

72

Hemns

Equity Share capital (in Rs. crore)
; As at 31st Asat st
Particulars March 2024 March 2023
Authorised share capital
15,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 ¢ach
{15,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 cach as at 31st 150,00 150.00
March 2023)
150.00 150.00
Issued/Subscribed and Paid up Capital
15,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 ¢ach-fully paid
{15,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 cach-fully paid as at 150.00 150.0t)
31st March 2023}
154300 1500}
Promoter’s shareholding
Particulars Shares held by Promoter at the end of the perlod / year % change
during the
period ! year
S.No Promaoter Name % of total
No. of shares
shares
As at 31st March 2024
1 {rcon International Limited- Holding 15,00,00,000 100.00% NA
Company ( JRCON}
Particulars Shares held by Promoter at the end of the period f year % change
during the
period  year
S.No Promoter Name % of total
Mo, of shares
shares
Ircon International Limited- Holding
As at 31st March 2023 1 Company { IRCON) 15,00,00,000 100.00% NA

Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% sharves in the Company

As at 31st March 2024

As at Fist March 2023

Name of the shareholder o —
No.ofShare % holding intheclass  No.ofShare /= holding ':I;];:
Ircon Intemnational Limited- Holding 15,00,00,000 100,00%  [5,00,00,000 100.00%
Company { IRCON)
Details of sharcholders holding in the company
As at 31st March 2024 As ac Jlst March 2023
N f the sharehold ° ing i 3 ing i
ame of the s older No. of Share %o holding in the No. of Share %o holding in
class the class
Ixcon International Limited- Holding Company { IRCON) 15,00,00,000 100.00 15,00,00,000) 100.00
Total 15,00,00,000 100.00 15,00,00,000 100.00

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capital outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

= As at F1st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Particulars = :
INo of shares Rs in ¢rore No of shares | Rs in crore
Tssued/Subseribed and Paid up equity Capital outstanding at the beginning of the year 15,00,00.000 150.00 15,00,00,000 150.00
Add: Shares Issued during the year - .
Less: Shares Buy Back during the year = s : ;
[ssued/Sebscribed and Paid up equity Capital outstanding at the end of the year 15,00,00,000 150.00 15,00,00,(00 150.00

/oig}f"' =g
CO‘." ."'a:}‘l-: 5

& L FRN
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED /E””&?ﬂ

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Other Equity (in Rs. Crore)
Particulars As at 31st Mar 2024 As at 31st March 23
Retained Eatnings (109.03) (102.64)
Total (109.03) (102.64%

Movement as per below:

Retained Eamnings

Opening Balance (102.64) (88.30)
Add: Transfer from sutplus in statement of profit and loss 639 (14.34)
Closing Balance {109.03) {102.64)
Grand Total (109.03) (102.64)

Nature and Purpose of Other Reserves:

Retained Earnings
Retained Earnings represents the undistributed profits of the Company.
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 l/iﬂ”!!tl

Non-Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities

Non-Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (in Rs. Crore)
E As at 3lst As at 3lst

Particulars March 2024  March 2023

Secured:

{2) Loaa from State Bank of India { Refer note below and note 15.1) 467.17 438.78

Total 467.17 488.78

Notes :

Terms & Conditions

) A Term Loan from State Bank of India was mken in March 2022 by Loan agreement dated 17th February 2022 for Rs 501 crores. The break
up of Non current and current borrowings classification is given below :

. As at 31st As at 31st
g March 2024 | March 2023
Loan from State Bank of India { Refer note (i) and {iii} ) below : 483.57 493.06
Less : Current Maturities (Amount re- payable in next financial year ) Shown under - current Financial 16.40 428
Liabilities- borrowings Note 15.1
Amount Shown under Non-Current Financial Liabilities-Borrowings 467.17 483.78

i) Interest Terms
The Applicable Interest rate is base rate of SBI 3 month MCLR plus spread of 0.25% w.c.f 28.03.2022.

iii) Terms of Repayment
Term Loan shall be repaid in 11.5 years upto 30.09.2033, in quactecly instalments as per the schedule mentioned in the Loan agreement.

As per clause 12 of the Loan agreement, the securities for the Loan extended are mentioned in beief as under :

{a) furst charge on all the Bocrower’s tangible movable assets pertaining to the Project;

(b} a first charge over all accounts of the Borcower pertaining to the Project including the Escrow Accounts and the sub-accounts (ot any account
in substitution thereof) or any other bank account that may be opened in accordance with this Agreement ;

{c)  first charge on all intangibles assets pertaining to the Project including but not limited to goodwill, rights, undertaking and uncalled capital
present and future ;

{d) Assignment/Charge by way of Security in the following, both present and futute:

(i) all the right, tte, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in the Project Documents;

(i} the right, title and interest of the Borcower in, to and under all the Clearances;

(iii} all the right, ditle, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsocver of the Borrower in any letter of credit, guacantee including conteactor
guarantees and liquidated damages and performance bond provided by any party to the Borcower pursuant to the Project Documents;

(iv) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower under all Insurance Contracts pertaining to the Project;
(¢} An unconditional corporate guarantee by the promoter in favour of the Security trustee and an irrevocable and unconditional undertaking from
the Promoter , to cover any shortfall in the loan and other conditions as mentioned in the Loan agreement dated 17.02.2022

{f} The Company is not at default of either repaymeat of the loan or interest payment on the loans as on the Balance Sheet Date.

Other Financial Liability
{in Rs. crore)
Particulars Ag at 3st As at 3lst
March 2024 March 2023
Deposits and Retention money 0.03 0.03
Total 0.03 0.03
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED L
sy

Notes to Financial Statements fot the year ended 31st March 2024

(in Rs. crore)

Provisions
" As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars Foot Note 2024 2023
Provision for scheduled major maintenance of Toll Road 14.1 71.33 65.50
71.33 65.50
Cuzrrent 71.33 65.50

Non Current

The disclosute of provisions movement as required under the requirements of Ind A8 37 is as follows :

Other Provisions :
(in Rs. crore)

Particulars Maintenance ‘Total
As at 01-April-2023 65.50 - 65.50
Current 65.50 - 65.50
Non Current - - -
Provision made duting the year for scheduled major
maintenance™" 51.48 - 51.48
Less: Utilization during the year 45.65 - 45.65
Less: Write Back during the year - - -
Unwinding of discount = e =
As at 3lst March 2024 71.33 - 71.33
Current 71.33 - 7133
Non Current - - -

The Company bas a contractnal obligation to maintain , replace or restore mnfrasiruciure , except for any enbancement element. Cost of such
obligation is measured at the best estimate of the excpendiiure vequired to sertle the obligation at the balance sheet date and recopnised over the
period at the end of which averiay is estimated to be carried out, The estimate for major maintenance is done by the Management and is reviewed
Jrom time to time based on updated data and reports available from the Toll Road Sits.

\\-.__.-/ L
J

rod Acco>
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Current Llabilities - Other Financlal Liabilities

/A1)

(in Rs. crore)

As at 31st March Asat 31st March

Particulars 2024 2023
Deposits, Retention money and Money Withheld 1.96 1.44
Deposits, Retention money and Money Withheld- Related Party - Holding Company 3.41 .
Amount Payable to Client ' 1.96 1.85
Other Payables (including Staff Payable) 6.80 3.72
14.13 7.01

Total

Other Current Llabilities

{in Rs. crore)

Particulars

As at 31st March As at 31st March
2024 2023

a) Contract Liability
b) Others

Statutory dues

Total

Notes:

1.24 0.38

1.24 0.38

a) Statutory dues includes liability for Goods and Service Tax (GST), TDS, Provident Fund and other statutory dues.
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED

HEamspe

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Revenue from operations (in Re. crores)
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
Construction Contract revenue 2.86 33.07
Revenue from Toll Operations (Refer Note 25 & 34) 166.16 142.31
- Other Operating Revenue 0.41 0.38
Total 169.43 175.76
Other Income (in Rs. crores)
For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
Interest Income :
Interest on refund of income-tax 0.01 -
Interest on other advances/Security Deposits 0.01 -
Bank Interest Gross 6.38 1.58
- 6.38 - 1.58
Others :
Miscellaneous Income 0.05 0.17
Total 6.45 1.75
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

Note:-

a)

24 Related Party Transactions

HGamsge

Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures” are as under;
List of Related Parties where control exists and also related parties with whom transactions have taken place

and relationships.

{i) Holding Company
Ircon International Limited

{ii) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Board of Directors

Name

Designation

Shri Yogesh Misra

Chairman w.e.f from 01.02.2024

Shri D K Sharma

Chairman upto 01.02.2024

Shri Masood Ahmad Najar

Director w.e.f 02,08.2021

Smt Marzia Fatima

Director w.e.f 23.01.2024

Shri Rohit Parmar

Director upto 24.04.2024

Shri Abheeijit Kumar Sinha

Director w.e.f 24.04.2024

Other Members |dentified as Key Management Personnel ( KMP)

Name

Designation

Shri Jitender Kumar Maurya

Chief Executive Officer upto 06.06.2023

Shri Suresh P. Yadappanavar

Chief Executive Officer upto 30.11.2023

Shri Deepak Kumar Garg

Chief Executive Officer upto 01.04.2024

Shri Uttam Shamrao Thorat

Chief Executive Officer w.e.f 01.04.2024

Smt Rachna Tomar

Chief Financial Officer w.e.f 01.04.2022

Company Secretary

Name

Designation

Smt Pooja Gurwala

Company Secretary w.e.f 28.07.2023
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¢) Outstanding balances with the related parties are as follows: {in Rs. crore)
A Nature of As at As at
S.No. Nature of transaction Name of related party relationship 31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
1 Equity Received { Liability} Ircon International Limited Holding Company 150.00 150.00
2  |Advance and Claims Recoverable Ircon Intemnational Limited Holding Company 20,70 3.20
3 |Amount Payable towards
31 |Trade Payables Ircon International Limited Holding Company 68.21 321
3.2 |Money withheld Ircon International Limited Holding Company 3.41 5

d) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in amm'’s length transactions.
QOutstanding balances of related parties at the year-end are unsecured and settlement accurs through banking transactions. These

{®
(ii)

(i)

(v)

balances are interest free.

The Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating o amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is
undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party

operates.

IrconSGTL had four Part-time Directors during the financial year 2023-24, nominated on the Board by the halding company, do not
draw any remuneration from the Company. No sitling fee is paid to the Part-time Directors,
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 l/gﬂ”;]t{

Note:-25  Service Concession Atrangements (SCA)

Public-to-private sexvice concession arrangements are recorded in accordance with Appendix “"C"- Service Concession Arrangements to Ind
AS-115-"Revenue from Contract with customers". This SCA is falling within this appendix's scope as both the conditions set out below are
met:

a)  The Grantor controls or regulates which services the operator must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and
at what price; and

b)  The grantor controls- through ownership, beneficial entitlement, or otherwise- any significant residual interest in the infrastrucrure at
the end of the term of the arrangement.

An intangible asset is recognized to the extent that the operator receives the tight to charge users of the public service, provided that these
charges are conditional on the degree to which the service is used.

These intangible assets are initially recognized at cost, which is understood as the fair value of the service provided plus other direct costs
directly attibutable to the operation. They are then amortized over the term of the concession.

Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited (TrconSGTL) (the operator) has entered into a service concession artangement with National Highway
Authority of India (NHAT} dated 15th June 2015 in terms of which NHAI (the grantor) has authorized the company to develop, finance,
design, enginect, procure, construct, operate and maintain the Project of four laning of Shivpuri Guna Section and to exercise and/or enjoy
the rights, powers, benefits, privileges authorizations and entitlements upon its completion. In terms of the said agreement Ircon Shivpuri
Guna Tollway Limited has an obligation to complete construction of the project of four laning of Shivpuri Guna section and to keep the
project assets in proper working condition including all projects assets whose lives have expired.

The Concession period shall be 20 years commencing from the appointment date. At the end of the concession period, the assets will be
wansferred back to National Highway Auchority of India (NHAIL). In case of material breach in terms of agreement the NHAI and
IrconSGTL have right to terminate the agreement if they are not able to cure the event of default in accordance with such agreement.

The Company recognizes revenue and cost in accordance with Ind AS 115 by reference to the construction’s stage of completion. The
Company measures contract revenue at the fair value of the consideration receivable. During the arrangement's construction phase, the
Company's assets of 725.90 crores (representing its accumulating right to be paid for providing construction services) is classified as an
intangible assets (license to charge user of the infestructure), which was completed in 2018-19. The IInd Phase of the Toll Road stacted in
Financial year 21-22 and provisional completion of the same was received in 17-12 2022 and second provisional completion on 01-06-2023 .
Consequently Rs 10.67 Crotes { Previous year : Rs 45.96 Crores) were transferred from Intangible Assets under development to Intangible
assets during the year. Toll collection from Phase IT has also commenced. As on 31st March 2024, Rs Nil( last year Rs 7.81 crores ) has been
shown under Intangible Asset under development. The Company has recognized nil profit on construction of intangible assets under service
concession arrangement .The Revenue recognized in relaton to construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement
represents the fair value of services provided towards construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement. The operation
of 1oll road has commenced from 7th June 2018 and that of Phase IT for 10.40 kms from 17-12-2022 and for further 1.99 kms from 01-06-
2023. The company has recognised usage fee as revenue of Rs.166.16 Crores ( last year Rs 142.31 croves) from operation of toll road for the
Year ended 31.03.2024.

Concession fee and its premium is seen as being paid for earning the revenue and is treated as a charge against revenue. During the period
concession fees of Rs 25.77 Crores ( Last year Rs 24.54 Crores) to NHAI has been paid as per terms of the concession agreement . Usage fee
collected over and above the traffic cap as per the concession agreement is termed as excess fee. This SCA is due to be renegotiated as per
clause mumber 28 and 29 of the concessionaire agreement.

Major Maintenance Obligations

‘Major Maintenance Obligations” includes undertaking major maintenance such as resurfacing of pavements, repairs to structures, and repaics
and refurbishment of tolling system and other equipment. These obligations are recognized and measured at the best estimate of the
expendinire required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. The provision for the resurfacing is built up in accordance with
the provisions of Ind AS 37 . Timing and amount of such cost are estimated and recognised on straight line basis over the period at the end
of which the overlay is estimated to be carried out based on technical evaluadon by independent experts.

Construction Contracts
In terms of the disclosure required in Ind AS -115 "Revenue from Contract with Customers” , the amount considered in the financial
statements up to the balance sheet date are as follows:-

(in Rs. crore)
Particulars As at 31s¢ March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Revenue recognized from construction services 33.07
Revenue recognised from toll-Usage fee 142.31
33.07

Apggrepate ‘:lm(JLu}tJt;!E cost incurred and recognized in Profit/Loss
Contract Works

Gross amount ;}itﬁ:-}f{xfﬁi C]ihi_{'f
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Note:-

Note:-

26

27

Disclosure as required by Ind AS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements”

In the current financial year, in compliance of Amendments to Ind AS-1 made effective
from 1st April 2023, the 'significant' accounting policies of the Company's financial
statements have been replaced with 'Material' accounting policies.

The Material Accounting policies is part of these financial statements of the Company at
note no. 2.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company's disclosure of accounting policies,
but not an the measurement , recognition or presentation of any items in the Company's
financial statements.

Disclosure as required by Ind AS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors"

During the year the following amendments were made :

(i} Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more
useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant” accounting
policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding
guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies,
but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s
financial statements.

(it) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes
in accounting policies and the correction of errors, It has also been clarified how entities
use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction -
Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so
that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences such as leases.

As a result of these amendments, the Company has to recognize a separate deferred tax
asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation to its right-of-
use assets. Since, these balances qualify for offset as per the requirements of paragraph 74
of Ind AS 12, there is no impact in the balance sheet.
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Note:- 28 Employee Benefits
a. The employees in Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited are posted on Deputation basis from Ircon
International Limited (Holding Company).
b. In terms of accounting policy of the Company (Note No. 2.2.7) and atrangement with the Holding
Company, the provision for Retirement Benefits such as provident fund, pension, gratuity, post retirement
tnedical benefits, Leaves and other terminal benefits of nominated employees is being made by Holding
company in terms of Ind AS-19. The amount paid or payable towards provident fund, pension, grawuty,
post retirement medical benefits, Leaves and other terminal benefits to the holding company are included
in "Employee Benefit Expenses" (Note 20},
c¢. Provident Fund Contribution of the employees on nomination/secondment have been regularly
deposited by the holding company with its P.F Trust.

Note:- 29 Foreign exchange recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
NIL
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Note:- 34 Revenue from contract with customers

A. Disaggregation of Revenue

Set out below is the disagaregation of the Company’s revenue from conteacts with customers into operating segment and type of product or services:
{in Rs. crore)

For the year ended 31st March 2024
L Total 4
Revenue as per Ind AS 115 Method for measuring otz] as per
Type of Product or Services performance obligation Other Statement of
Revenue Profit and Loss
I Y Output /Segment
. ) npu utpu R iy
Domestic Total Method Method eparting
Highway 16943 169.43 169.43 - - 169.43
Others ' - - - B - -
Total 169.43 169.43 169.43 - - 169.43

Out of the total revenue recognised under Ind AS 115 during the year, Rs 2.86 Crore is recognised over a period of tme and Rs, 166.16 crore
recogrised point in tme,

(in Rs. crore)

For the year ended 31st March 2023
Revenue as per Ind AS 115 gl mea'sun.ng Total as per
performance obligation Srateiient of
Type of Product or Services Other - ¢
RlbeR Profit and Loss
! Input Output /Segment
Dosmestic Toual Method Method Renring
Highway 175,76 175.76 175.76 - B 175.76
Others - = = = = =
Total 175.76 175.76 175.76 - - 175.76

Out of the toral revenue recognised under Ind AS 115 duting the year, Rs 33.07 Crore is recogmised over a period of time and Rs. 142,31 crore
recognised point in ime,

B. Revenue from hMonthly passes issued for Toll to Vehicles are issued as per requirement of the customers, the entire amount of which is booked as

C. Contract balances

revenue on the date of such wansaction. Such monthly passes are non refundable in nature,

(in Rs. crore)

Particulars As at As at
315t March | 31st March
2024 2023
Trade Receivables (Note 8.1) 0.71 0.55
Contract Assets - -
Contract Liabilities - -

(i} Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the customer profile includes Natonal Highway Authority of India { NHAT) and Toll Collection

Ageney, and Lessees to whom designated areas have been sub-eased. The Company’s average project execution cycle is around 24 to 36 months.
General payment terms include payments for utility shifing reimbursements and change in scope of work mutually agreed upon if any, with a credit
period ranging from 60 to 180 days or when the work is certified. Payments also includes Toll zeceipts for use of Toll collected by the Toll Collection
Agency for the Company. Apact from these, pavments also include lease payments received from Lessees to whom area has been leased for petrol
pump and rest arca. Project exccuted by the Company is under BOT ( built operate transfer) model and the payments are on account of Toll
Collection, Lease rentals for leased area and additional works by NFAL if any.

(i) Contract Assets are recogaised over the period 1n which serviees are performed to represent the Company's right to consideration in exchange for

goods or services tansferred to the customer. It includes balances due from customers under construction contracts that arise when the Company
receives payments from customers as per terms of the contracts however the revenue is recognised over the period under input method. Any
amount previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables on satisfaction of the condition attached ic. future service which
is necessary to ;\_Chi:‘:&’n; thebilling milestone.,

Movemént ‘Iﬁ contra {in Rs. crore)

\
O condrooad
L i
(’aL.
AN /
oo/

&
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Asat As at
Particulars 3st March | 31st March
2024 2023

Contract asset at the Beginning of the year = >
Contract asset at the end of the year - -
Net increase/decrease - -

(i) Contract liabilities relating to construction contracts are balances due to customers, these arise when 2 particular milestone
payment exceeds the revenue recognised to date under the input method and advance received in long term construction contracts.
The amount of Advance received gets adjusted over the construction period as and when invoicing is made to the

customer.[J
(in Rs. crore)
As at As at
Particulars 31st March | 31st March
2024 2023
Contract liabilities at the beginning of the year
Contract liabilities at the end of the year - -
Net increase/decrease - =
D. Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised froms (in Rs. crore)
As at As at
Particulars 31st Macch | 31st March
2024 2023
Amount included in contract Kabilities at the beginning of - -
the year ’
Performance obligation satisfied in previous yeats - -

E. Performance obligation
Information about the Company’s performance obligations are summarised below:
The transaction pfice allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) as at 31st March are, as follows:
(in Rs, crore)

As at As at
Particulars 31st March  31st March

2024 2023
Within one year : - -
More than one yeat to 2 years - -
More than 2 years' - -
Total - -
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Note:- 35 Leases

a) Company as a Lessee

Heonsge

The Company as a lessee has entered into lease contracts, for office space . Before the adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company
classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a finance lease or an operating lease. These leases are in

nature of short term leases or low value leases and are operating leases.

Right of Use Assets

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year is Nil.

Lease Liabilities

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities tecognised and the movements during the year:

(in Rs. crore)
As at 31st March 2024

Balance at April 1, 2023
Addition

Accredition of interest
Payments

Balance at March 31, 2024
Current

Non-curcent

Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

{in Rs. crote)

For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets - -
Interest expense on lease liabilities - -
Expense relating to short-term and low value leases (Refer Note 19) .05 0.03
0.05 0.03

b) Company as a Lessor

The Company has given a demarcated area adjacent to the Toll Road, within the terms of the Sexvice Concession Artangement
with NHAI, on Lease for a Petrol Pump to be operated by Hindustan Petroleum Company Limited ( HPCL ) and Lease and
operations of Rest Area to Synergy Engineers Group Private Limited. During the year an amount of Rs 0.19 Crores ( Rs 0.18
Crores} had accrued from HPCL and Rs 0.22 Crores (Rs 0.20 Crores) from Synergy as Lease rentals.

Future minimum tentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:

(in Rs. crore)

As at As at
31st March 2024  31st March 2023
Within one year 0.25 0.41
After one year but not more than five years 0.90 0.%1
More than five years 1.92 2.17
3.07 3.49
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Note:- 36 Information in respect of dues to Micro and Small Enterptises as required by Micro, Small and Medium
Entetptises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)

(in Rs. crote)

5.No.

Particulats

As at 3lst
March 2024

As at 31st
Masch 2023

The principal amount and the interest due theteon remaining unpaid to
any supplier as at the end of each accounting year:

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyet in terms of Section 16 of the
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day duting each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the petiod of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the putpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under Secton 23 of the MSMED Act 2006
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Disclosure of ratios
. . March 31s¢ March 31st o Reason for change more
Particulars Numerator Denominator 2024 2023 % change than 259
This ratio has increased on
acconnt of increase in cash
Current ratio Current Assets  |Current Liabilities 082 058 41.38% and cash equivalents due to
increased revenue in toll
operations
Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Sharcholder’s 11.80 1041 13.35% NA
Equity
Eam_mgs for debt Debt  service =
service = Met
rofit after taxe Imecest & Leasq
Diebt service coverage ratio pro 3 Payments + 230 2,59 -11.20% Na
+ Non-cash|_ ="
- Principal
operating
Repayrnents
expenses
Net Profits after Average
Retarn on equity ratio R ~|shaceholder’s 014 026 46.15% | Theratio has improved on
Preference Equi account of lower losses.
Dividend R
[nventory tumover ratio Soolzt of goods Average Inventory NA NA NA NaA,
Net credit sales = e Trade
Trade receivables turnover ratio Gross credit sales e 1.45 1.65 -12.12% NA
Receivable
- sales returm
The decrease is due to
Net credit amounts pending to be paid
purchases =| to Holding Company-
Trade payable turnover ratio Gross credit ::er:]gees Tradg 0.97 1.72 -43.60% IRCON, for stage 2 works
purchases o ek and major and routine
purchase return maintenance works of the
Company
The decrease in this ratio is
due to higher current
liabilities on account
Net sales = Total|Working capital = amounts pending to be paid
Net capital tumover ratio sales - sales|Current assets - -538 -3.82 -4 84% to Holding Company-
return Current liabilities [RCON, for stage 2 works
and major and routine
maintenance works of the
Company.
Net profit ratio has improved,
Net profit ratio Net Profit Net sales = Total 0.04 008 50.00% N account (?f tncreased toll
sales - sales retum revenue during the year and
higher interest income.
Capital Employed = The ratio has improved on
Famings before Tangible Net Worth account of increase in profit
Return on capital employed interestg:m A taed Il Total Debt + 0.07 005 40,00% on account of improved toll
Deferred Tax operations and higher interest
Liability income.
Retun on investment Iiserest (Financg [nvestment Na NA NA NA

Income)
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xvii

Additional regulatory information

Since Company have no Lease in the books threfore no disclosure is required.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virrual Currency during the financial year ending 31st March 2024 and
31st March 2023,

The Company has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year ending 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023,

During the financial year 2023-24 and 2022-23, the Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or
entity(is), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intetmediary shall:

{2) ditecty or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identificd in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to ot on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

During the financial year 2023-24 and 2022-23, the Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(is), including
foreign entities (Funding Party} with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(3) direcdy or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantee, secusity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company does not have any loans and advances in the nature of loans to promoters, ditectors, KMP and other related parties in
the financial year ending 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023,

The Company do not have any Besami property as on 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023, whete any proceeding has been initiated
or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

The Company does not have any immovable properties as at 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023,

Company is not required to submit statement of current assets with the bank and therefore reconcilation of the statement filed by the
company with bank and the books of accounts is not applicable.

The Company does not have any investment property as at 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023,

During the year 2023-24 and 2022-23, the company has not revalued any of its Property,plant and equipment , the Company has not
revalued any item of property, plant and equipment and Intangible Asset.

The Company does not have any transactions in financial year 2023-24 and 2022-23, where the company has not used the borrowings
from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date.

The Company has not entered in any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or sutvey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Company has not received any grants and donations during the year ending 315t Mazch 2024 and period ending 31st March 2023.

i The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government ot any government

authority in the financial year 2023-24 and 2022-23.
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed undet the Companies Act, 2013,

xvili There are no charges or satisfaction of charge yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the Statutory Petiod in the

xix

financial year ending 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023.

The Company have not eateted into any schemefs) of atrangements during the year ending 31st March 2024 and period ending 31st
March 2023.

The Company do not have any prior period errors in financial year ending on 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023 to be disclosed
separately in Statement of changes in equity.
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Note:- 38 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (CSR)

The applicability of CSR under section 135 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable as its average net profit
of the Company is Nil due to continuing losses for three years. Hence no CSR expenditure has been incutred during
the perted.

Note ;- 39 Other disclosures

a) The company has a system of obtaining petiodic confirmation of balances from banks and other parties. Sofar
as trade/other payables and loans and advances are concerned, the balance confirmation letters wete sent to
the parties. Balances of some of the Trade Receivables, Other assets , Trade and other payables are subject to
confirmation/reconciliations and consequential adjustment, if any. Reconciliations are carried out on an on-
going basis. However, management does not expect to have any material financial impact of such pending
confirmations / reconciliations,

b) In the opinion of the management, the value of curtent assets, loans and advances on realization in the
ordinary course of business, will not be less than the value at which these are stated in the balance sheet.

¢) Certain prior periods amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current period presentations.
These reclassifications have no effect on the reported results of operations. Also, previous year figures are
shown under bracket () to differentiate from cutrent year figures.

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited

Abheejit Kumar Sinha)
Director
DIN - 09213782

ForSRJN & Co LLP
Chattered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. : 009063N

Y S Er D)

[/ 6’L \f% A

T’{‘][ FRN ';-‘!';‘-?r.‘-!ll i Al r

(CA Jai Prakash Rarh ) K ; / & '7;’(,/%/ {w_’,__
&/( Uttam Shamrao Thorat) (Rachna Tomat) ( Pooja Gurwala)

Designated Partner o
M. Neo. 501283 Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Sectetary

Place : New Delhi
Date :- 10th May 2024
UDIN : 24501283BKGRZH1627
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

The preparation of financial statements of Ircon Shivpuri Guna Tollway Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the financial reporting
framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India under Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for
expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act, based
on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide
their Audit Report dated 10 May 2024.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided
not to conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements of Ircon Shivpuri
Guna Tollway Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 under Section 143 (6)(a)
of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place: New Delhi Dr. Nilot; Goswami
Dated: >3.06.2024 Director Geéneral of Audit
Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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IRCON SHIVPURI GUNA TOLLWAY LIMITED
(‘IrconSGTL’)

Registered & Corporate Office:
C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi -110017, India
Tel.: +91-11-29565666 | Fax: +91-11-26522000, 26854000

E-mail id: cs.irconsgtl@gmail.com




